QUESTIONS/ANSWERS

WEST PROCUREMENT - NNH09274133R


Note:  As new questions and responses are posted, they will be added to the bottom of the previous set of posted questions.  The questions will be separated by the date that the questions and responses are posted.  This allows for a single continuously updated document that contains all questions and responses.

WEST Final RFP Questions and Responses – Posted January 7, 2010
1. Reference RFQ Part V, Addendum – FAR Clause 52.212-2 – Evaluation-Commercial Items (Jan 1999), Paragraph 5 – Past Performance Evaluation Factor. Is there a latent preference for a record of performing services for or delivering products to NASA that are similar in size, content, and/or complexity to the requirements of the solicitation, i.e., all else equal, will past performance with NASA be rated higher than past performance with, for example, the Department of Defense?

Answer:  All past performance references will be evaluated equally in accordance with the RFQ.  No special consideration will be given to a NASA contract over a Department of Defense contract.
2. If a prime contractor has or has had only one (1) contract for similar efforts (together with one or more significant subcontractor past performance references) and that one (1) contract is extremely relevant and reflects an outstanding past performance history, is it possible for overall past performance to be assessed at the “Very High Level of Confidence” rating?
Answer:  The Government cannot nor will not offer a rating without evaluating the past performance reference.

3. Attachment L – DRD West 10 states that the OCI Plan is to be submitted 30 days after release of final RFP.  Solicitation –p.81 (3) says the OCI Plan is to be submitted with the proposal if an OCI exists, and 30 days after contract award if an OCI does not exist. Solicitation – p.76 (Proposal Content and Page Limitations table) shows the OCI plan as a proposal component within Offer Volume.  Please clarify the due date of the OCI Plan.
Answer:  If the Offeror is aware of an organizational conflict of interest (OCI) that could impact contract performance, an OCI Plan must be submitted and approved prior to contract award.  However, if there is no anticipated issue then the OCI plan would be submitted 30 days after contract award.  Amendment 3 will clarify the proposal content and page limitations listed on page 76.
4. The heading of the solicitation indicates that WEST is an “RFQ,” as well as several references throughout the solicitation documents.  Is the Government’s intent to issue WEST as an RFQ and not a Request for Proposal (RFP), which presumes different procurement rules?
Answer:  Yes, this solicitation is issued as a Request for Quote.

5. SF 1449:  The due date indicates that the proposal is due on 02/05/09.  We are assuming that the due date is in error and should be 02/05/10.  
Answer:  The SF1449 the due date of proposals was corrected to 02/05/2010 under Amendment #1.

6. Also, the assigned NAICS code, 541519 is associated with a $25 million size standard instead of $23 million.  Please advise.
Answer:  The SF1449 will be corrected with the correct size standard of $25 million under Amendment #3.

7. Could you please confirm if there is a bidders conference that is likely to be scheduled for this solicitation? If yes, where is this likely to be scheduled?
Answer:  A bidders’ conference will not be held.

8. Could you please confirm if there is a proposal response content format which needs to be followed for responding to this solicitation? If yes, could you kindly share the same. 
Answer:  Part IV, Section 13 - Proposal Preparation—General Instructions identifies the proper format for proposals.
9. Given the delay in the RFP being released, is there a possibility of NASA extending the current deadline? With the holidays approaching, we want to ensure all potential bidders have sufficient time to respond. Please let me know if this is a consideration going forward, or if it has already been factored into the current deadline.
Answer:  The Government has reviewed this request and has determined that a 60-day response time is sufficient and therefore the proposal due date will not be extended.  Proposals are due on February 5, 2010 at 1:00pm.
10. Will the Government provide an Independent Government Estimate so that offerors can determine an approximate number of personnel that must be located offsite in contractor-provided facilities? 
Answer:  The Government will not release the independent government cost estimate for this procurement in Amendment 3.

11. Part I, page 16, paragraph 19, states that “(Two seats are available at NASA Headquarters, Washington, D.C. for work performed under this Contract).”  Will the Government indicate which two labor categories are located onsite at NASA Headquarters?
Answer: As WEST is a performance-based contract, the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use its particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies.
12. 10.
Part IV, Section 16(d)(4) & Attachment G:  What are the two labor categories requiring Top Secret clearance and do any of two seats provided at NASA Headquarters require Top Secret clearance?  Are any of the two seats provided at NASA Headquarters within Top Secret areas? 
Answer: As WEST is a performance-based contract, the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use its particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies. The two seats provided will be in open office-space areas.
13. Part IV, page 75, paragraph 13, subparagraph (a)(4), uses the term “Section M.”  Please clarify whether Section M is actually Part V of the RFQ?

Answer:  This is an administrative error.  The reference of Section M will be replaced with “Part V”.
14. In an article published by Federal News Radio, a NASA Spokesperson mentions that this contract could be potentially worth $70 million over the five year duration. Could you please confirm that this information is correct? If you could confirm this information I would greatly appreciate it. 

Answer: The government will not release the independent government cost estimate.
15. Who is the incumbent contractor for this project? 
Answer:  The incumbent contractor is E-Touch Systems of Fremont, Calif.

16. What was the value of the previous contract?
Answer:  This information is releasable through the FOIA process.  Please note that the value of the previous contract reflects the value based on the specific requirements listed under the Web Portal contract.  Please also note that the WEST contract requirement has been modified from the existing Web Portal contract.
17. How soon after contract award does NASA envision issuing the order that will kickoff the transition/phase-in?  

Answer: The transition/phase-in will begin immediately upon contract award.
18. Would the government consider making the entire effort an IDIQ, T&M, CPFF procurement; With Cost reimbursable CLINS for CDN, Streaming and Metric gathering services? 

Answer: No, in the best interest of the Government the contract type will remain unchanged.
19. Attachment A, Performance Work Statement, page 6, paragraph D, (and other locations throughout the PWS), references the WEST PM.  Will the Government define the “PM” acronym?

Answer: The term refers to the WEST Program Manager, a function performed by the Deputy Chief Information Officer for Architecture and Infrastructure.
20. How many target groups will there be to conduct initial and final end-to-end system usability with? 

Answer: Eight NASA employees and/or contractors
21. Who is the current CDN provider? 

Answer: The current CDN provider is Akamai.
22. Are the current CDN services being procured on a cost reimbursable or fixed-price basis? 
Answer: The incumbent contractor provides these services under this contract under the firm fixed portion of the Web Portal Services contract.  The Government does not have insight into the subcontractor/prime relationship with the CDN service provider.  
23. Is the current consumption depicted in Attachment F (ARC/RRC price table), for Tier I & II storage, MBPS for Non-streaming Web Content, and Streaming of NASA TV, the total current usage for all existing services? 

Answer: The resource-baseline requirements in Attachment F are NASA's estimate of the level of services that will be required over the life of the WEST contract, not of the current usage of the existing contract.
24. Understanding the government’s desire to reduce band width consumption by “taking advantage of vendors operational efficiencies”  does the government anticipate the need for the vendor to convert heavier weighted legacy data and content to less bandwidth consuming applications and data structures?
Answer: As WEST is a performance-based contract, the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use its particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies. 
25. Does NASA currently have 900TB of Streaming content archived on its servers? 

Answer: NASA currently has just over 80 GB of on-demand streaming content archived.
26. What is the current “search solution” deployed by NASA for your websites, including streaming media? 

Answer: NASA uses the Google Customer Search Engine in concert with Baynote Social Search, linked with the NASA Thesaurus. (http://www.sti.nasa.gov/thesfrm1.htm).
27. What is the current monthly cost incurred from webmetrics.com and what are the exact services they are providing for that cost? 

Answer: There is no current agreement with webmetrics.com.

28. How many core web developers are currently on NASA staff to support this effort? How many are “distributed” web developers? 

Answer: Web development is provided by the prime contractor.
29. Given the government’s expectation in Attachment H, Resource  Baseline of 20 monthly hours for design, 308 hours monthly for application development and maintenance and 100 hours monthly for reviewing and accepting new applications, is the government expecting the vendor to provide an almost one hundred percent “shrink-wrapped” CMS solution? 

Answer: As WEST is a performance-based contract, the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use their particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies.
30. Are media files (images, video, etc) associated with key word or meta tags that will facilitate migration to a new system?
Answer: In the current structure, metadata is associated with HTML files, not multimedia objects.
31. How many concurrent live streams will be required at any given time? 

Answer: The number varies from several dozen to regular peaks of more than 100,000 simultaneous streams for major events (e.g., space shuttle launches) and much higher for some events (e.g., 430,000 for the space shuttle's return to flight in 2005 and 380,000 for the impact of LCROSS on the moon in 2009).
32. Can you please confirm if the vendor is required to have a cleared facility and if the contractors would all be required to have clearances and at what level. 

Answer:  IT is not specifically necessary for all contractors to have clearances.  However, there is a requirement for the vendor to be able to receive classified IT security threat information, up to TS/SCI, and to be able to act on this information as necessary.  Since this is a performance based contract, most of the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor to promote the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets this requirement.

33. Do you foresee any SAP requirements in either WEST or EAST projects?
Answer:  SAP is an internal NASA system.  There will be no requirement for the WEST vendor to integrate with it.  Questions about the EAST contract shall be directed to Vann Jones, Contracting Officer, Marshall Space Flight Center, 256-544-3589.

34. How many billable hours does the government consider to be in a month on this effort? 

Answer: The Government does not dictate how many billable hours are anticipated in a month.  The Offeror shall propose and bill in accordance with their standard accounting practices.
35. We currently do not have Top Secret Facility Clearance. Can we bid it so that NASA sponsor us for Facility Clearance if selected?
Answer:  NASA cannot sponsor a contractor to obtain a clearance; it is the contractor’s responsibility.
WEST Final RFP Questions and Responses – Posted January 12, 2010
36. There appears to be a conflict regarding requested submission date of the completed past performance questionnaires.  Exhibit 16 requests that the questionnaire be returned by January 8, 2010 while page 92 of the solicitation states that the  “[t]he Offeror is responsible for ensuring that the questionnaire is completed and submitted directly to the NASA Goddard Space Flight Center Contracting Officer no later than the closing date of this solicitation designated in Block 9 of the SF 33 [February 5, 2010 at 13:00 ED].”  Please clarify which date is correct.

Answer:  NASA requests that the completed questionnaires be submitted to Contracting Officer by January 8, 2010 or as soon as possible thereafter.  However, NASA will consider all past performance questionnaires submitted within a reasonable period in order for us to conduct the past performance evaluation for each team.

37. How many content owners / government personnel exist, that the vendor is expected to train and migrate their content? 

Answer:  See Section 15.6 of the Performance Work Statement, which requires training for 50 users during phase-in and all remaining users within 30 days of contract start. There are approximately 150 regular users to be trained.
38. How much legacy data does each content owner and each end-user have that will be migrated to the new CMS? Need a list by user/content owner entity with NASA that identifies the legacy data to be migrated to the new CMS.
Answer:  This information will be published on a spreadsheet entitled “NASA - Web Asset Stats – 4Q-09” under the Web Resources section within the WEST portion of the I3P technical library.
39. What are the current monthly CDN costs, and what services at what levels are being provided? 

Answer:  The incumbent contractor currently provides these services under the firm fixed portion of the Web Services contract.  As such, the Government does not have detailed insight into the CDN costs. The Government does not have insight into the subcontractor/prime relationship with the CDN service provider.
40. What format (s) is NASA currently streaming, Flash, WM, MPEGv4, etc? 

Answer: NASA currently streams in Flash, QuickTime, Windows Media and RealMedia.


41. How many distinct NASA entities will have their own “branding” of their content and organizations within the new Enterprise CMS? 

Answer: The future number of NASA entities with content management is unknown since it is the IDIQ portion of the contract; however, you may look at the web assets spreadsheet located entitled “NASA - Web Asset Stats – 4Q-09” under the Web Resources section within the WEST portion of the I3P technical library to find further information.  
42. Is the current CMS Government owned? 

Answer:  The current CMS is not Government owned.

43. Can any portion of the current CMS be used in the new CMS solution? 

Answer: As WEST is a performance-based contract, the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use their particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies.
44. In order to accurately estimate the level of effort involved to deploy a new CMS solution for NASA we need access to the existing CMS. Will the government provide this access, so that all vendors have a fair opportunity to analyze and evaluate current state, and therefore be able to propose the best and most comprehensive solution to the government?  As it stand now only the incumbent and their subcontractors have enough information to accurately and effectively reply to this Solicitation. 

Answer: Access to the current CMS is currently unavailable.  The only information available from NASA are the Content Transition Plan and the NASA Web Assets spreadsheet both listed in the Web Resources section of the WEST portion of the I3P Technical Library.

45. Is the Exhibit 11 RTO 1 a request for an application that is similar to the commercial application JIB-JAB? Does NASA currently have any application that will allow for this type of end-user interaction and if so, what is the application?

Answer: The RTO is similar to this URL:  http://spaceyourface.nasa.gov/. 
46. Are there a common, documented page/data formats for all existing content or will custom parsers be required for migration for multiple page layouts and schemas?

Answer: Available documentation can be found in the WEST section of the NASA I3P Technical Library website in the Web Resources section entitled “NASA Web site Redesign Project. 
47. Is the content management system developed by the incumbent government property?  If so would it be available to be used by the winning contractor if that contractor was not the incumbent?  If the current CMS (developed with government funds) is not available to the winning contractor wouldn’t that create an unfair advantage for the incumbent? 

Answer: The current CMS is not government owned.  This does not create an unfair advantage for the incumbent as there are multiple solutions in meeting this requirement and the Government will evaluate all CMS options.
48. Will all live streaming events be required to be available as VOD or for download after the event it completed? If so, what formats will be required? 

Answer: No, not all live events will be required to be available as video on demand (VOD) or for download after the event is completed.  NASA currently streams in Flash, QuickTime, Windows Media and RealMedia.  For examples, Offerors can visit http://www.nasa.gov/multimedia/videogallery/index.html. 
49. Since the Service Level Methodology puts 10% of the contractor’s monthly charges at risk, can the government give the actual or estimated percentages currently measured against the service level metrics described in Attachment E, Appendix 1? 

Answer: Similar service level metrics does not exist under the current contract and therefore that information is not available.

50. Will procurement of hardware (such as wire/cable/connectivity products) that is necessary for completing task orders under the NASA I3P NEDC contract be done by the contractors that win the award? Or will it run through the procurement office? 
Answer:  Questions related to the NEDC procurement shall be directed to Dunamis Pedraza, Contracting Officer who can be reached at: dunamis.t.pedraza@nasa.gov.

51. What is the total number of web pages that need to be transitioned from the old system to the new system during the Transition/Phase-in period? 

Answer:  This information is published on a spreadsheet entitled “NASA - Website Asset Stats – 4Q-09” under the Web Resources section within the WEST portion of the I3P technical library.
52. Is there a list of Federal System Integrators (Poc & Numbers) that are bidding on the below RFP?
Answer:  The Government does not have a list of Federal System Integrators.  A list of interested parties is located on the I3P website.

53. Question #26 is clarified as follows:  What is the current “search solution” deployed by NASA for your websites, including streaming media? 

Answer: For public search, NASA uses the Google Customer Search Engine in concert with Baynote Social Search, linked with the NASA Thesaurus  (http://www.sti.nasa.gov/thesfrm1.htm) and NASA Machine-Aided Indexing service (http://mai.larc.nasa.gov/home.jsp). For internal search, NASA uses a former Verity product, now Autonomy.
WEST Final RFP Questions and Responses – Posted January 20, 2010
54. Do you currently have a content management system in place to help facilitate the development and maintenance of your websites' shared content? 


Answer: Yes, the current content management system is Digital Asset Manager, which is produced by eTouch Systems.


55. PWS C.1 Configuration Item/Resource Tracking (page 9) “Up to ten (10) Remedy System Floating User Licenses will be provided as Government Furnished Service.” BMC Remedy offers a variety of different types of Remedy floating user licenses.  Please confirm the Government will provide ten of the “BMC Remedy Suite Floating User Add-On Licenses” to the WEST contractor.

Answer: The original Performance Work Statement incorrectly identified the kind of license to be provided. Amendment #3 will correctly identify the correct license as BMC Remedy Service Management Specialist Add-on User License.

56. Question:  Will the Government-provided Remedy floating user licenses give the WEST contractor access to the NASA’s BMC Remedy Atrium CMDB so the contractor can update CI information for items a, b, and c as described herein this reference?  If not, what BMC user licenses will the WEST contractor be required to procure to access and update CIs in the BMC CMDB.

Answer: The BMC Remedy Service Management Specialist Add-on User Licenses to be provided will allow the contractor to make changes to the CMDB.

57. PWS Section 23.2.1   Help and Service Support (page 107) “Contractor shall use the same software that the I3P Tier 1 Enterprise Service Desk uses for incident tracking, reporting and service ordering, which is currently Remedy, version 7.”  Can the WEST contractor use the Government-owned NSSC instance of the BMC Remedy ITSM applications to deliver Tier 2 help desk, incident response, problem-management and service order capabilities, or is the WEST contractor required to provide its own, separate instance of the BMC Remedy ITSM applications to support Tier 2 activities?

Answer:  The WEST vendor may use the NSSC system, but it is not required. Up to 10 BMC Remedy Service Management Specialist Add-on User Licenses will be provided. The vendor is responsible for the cost of any improvements or expansions to the NSSC instance required for the WEST vendor to use it. The vendor has the option of providing its own separate instance. As described in Section 23.2 of the PWS, the vendor's instance must integrate with the NSSC instance. 

58. Could you please confirm whether the government intends to supply software and transfer its current software licenses to the new contractor upon award? Although there was no mention of government-provided software in the solicitation, we want to accurately estimate incurred costs should this not be the case.  
Answer:   Other than the Remedy licenses mentioned in the Cross Functional Performance Work Statement (section C.1), there will be no government-furnished software under this contract.

59. Is the WEST Contractor, or the Government (OCIO A&ID SE&I), responsible for developing, maintaining, and pricing the ESRS service catalog entries for WEST-related services?

Answer: As stated in DRD-CF-13, the Contractor is responsible.
60. Section III – Would NASA like to see the bidders propose new technologies in their response or would they merely want to see a demonstration that the bidder has the capability to evaluate and implement new technologies?  If so, Should the cost of the technology be built into the proposal? 

Answer: As WEST is a performance-based contract, most of the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor, including the proposal of new technologies as stated in Section 18.4 of the PWS. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use its particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies.

61. Section III.9.15 – What is the current NASA technology for authentication and authorization services (Sun LDAP, Open LDAP, Microsoft Active Directory, other)? 

Answer: Our authentication architecture includes two options for authentication and authorization:
 
NASA’s Consolidated Active Directory (NCAD) is based on the Microsoft Active Directory infrastructure.  It supports both userid/password and PIV smartcard authentication.  The underlying authentication protocol is Kerberos.  NCAD supports NIST SP 800-63 Levels of Assurance 2 and 4.
 
NASA’s Access Launchpad is based on Sun Access Manager.  The NASA Enterprise Directory (NED), utilizing the SunOne Java Directory, provides identity and authorization data to support authentication and authorization decisions.  The Launchpad supports userid/password, RSA token, and PIV smartcard authentication.  It is also integrated with NCAD to provide a single sign-on experience for NASA employees.  The underlying authentication protocol is SAML v. 2.0.  The Launchpad supports remote IT access conforming to NIST SP 800-63 requirements for levels of assurance 1 – 4.


Regardless, as stated in the Performance Work Statement, the WEST vendor must comply with all NASA IT Security policies and procedures.

62. Section III 10.1.2 – Does this include content for all websites, wiki content, web based applications, feeds (webcasts, podcasts, etc.).  


Answer: Yes.
63. Section III 10.1.4.4 – Can we get clarification of “simultaneous users”?  Example: number of concurrent sessions with “X” transactions per minute per session.  Examples of transactions: saving a modification to content, deleting content, publishing content, rejecting workflow task, etc. 

Answer: There are currently 650 user accounts on the content-management system. Up to 100 may be using the system at the same time. In 2009, 135,000 web pages and associated files were published. This is the only information that is available from NASA.

64. Section III 10.1.4.5.2 – Are the “simple” sites part of the IDIQ pricing?   Could you clarify the scope of a simple site (number of pages, how much design and structure can be reused, can a standard template be crafted that is reused for the simple site)?   


Answer: No, the simple sites are part of the base portion of the contract. For additional reference, please see NASA Web Assets in the Web Resources section under WEST in the I3P Technical Library. (http://i3p-acq.ksc.nasa.gov/Contracts/Contract1.cfm).   Standard templates may be used.
65. Section III 10.1.6.10 – What type of templates (content capture or presentation) and how many are expected? 

Answer: The only information available is located in the Pattern Library located in the in the Web Resources section under WEST in the I3P Technical Library. (http://i3p-acq.ksc.nasa.gov/Contracts/Contract1.cfm). 

66. Section III 10.1.6 (all section) – When referring to “Designated Users”, does this include the implementing contractor, and/or other contractors & NASA employees.  Specifically regarding workflow and creating templates.  


Answer: This includes NASA and contractor personnel designated by NASA.
67. Section III 10.2.2.2 – What are the desktop/laptop platform and version for editors (Windows XP/Vista, Mac OS, etc.). What are the preferred web browsers for editors? 


Answer: As stated in PWS Section 9.21, tools provided to NASA and contractor users shall be web-based and fully functional with all software that make up NASA Desktop Standard 2804.   Information can be found in the General Documents section of the I3P Technical Library, (http://i3p-acq.ksc.nasa.gov/Contracts/Contract1.cfm).
68. Section III 10.2.2.3 – Please define concurrent.  Example: Current active web application sessions with “X” transactions per minute. 

Answer: NASA defines concurrent as the number of users actively users using the same system simultaneously.  The specific transactions per minute are unavailable from NASA.

69. Section III 10.2.2.10 – Is localization of the CM tool interface required?  Or is multi-lingual content only support sufficient? What languages will be required for support for content and for localization of the CM tool if needed?

Answer: No, localization of the CM tool is not required. Current Multi-lingual content support includes Spanish.   An example of this can be found on the following website: http://www.nasa.gov/about/highlights/En_Espanol.html 

70. Section III 10.2.3.5 – Is NASA requesting the ability to manage or reuse content from the proposed solutions CM tools for other sites regardless of CM tools required to manage those other sites? 


Answer: Yes.
71. Section III 10.2.5.3 – Can NASA provide the information referenced in http://www.sti.nasa.gov/nasaonly/webmai/?  This appears to be an internal site.  


Answer: The public site is http://mai.larc.nasa.gov/home.jsp.  Amendment #3 will add the correct website reference.
72. Section III 11.1.6 – Is NASA asking for support to upload/download these files or is the expectation to provided a viewer so these are viewable from a browser?  Clarification on what “support” means. 

Answer: Support for STEP-compliant CAD files includes the ability to upload, download, and view such files.

73. Section III 11.1.7 – What is NASA’s expectation in terms of support?  Is the contractor required to provide administration and management of the collaboration spaces (such as moderation, inviting users, etc.)?  This would be in addition to the general system and application/tools administration and management.  If so, would this be under the IDIQ portion of the contract? 

Answer: The contractor is expected to provide system administration, help desk support, and application administration as part of the base.  Moderation, facilitation, and content development within the spaces will be managed by NASA and is not part of this contract.  Collaboration spaces are expected to include standard capabilities (such as the ability to invite users and moderate content) for use by such NASA moderators. This is in the base portion of the contract.
74. Section 11.5.4 & 11.5.5. – Is the offerer expected to perform moderation of forums or provide the capability to moderate forums.  


Answer: Under the base portion of the contract, the Offeror will be expected to provide the capability for personnel designated by the COTR to moderate forums.  Under the IDIQ portion of the contract, the Offeror will be potentially required to moderate the forums.
75. Section III 11.8 – It is unclear if you are asking us to support the existing Spacebook or provide an alternative. 

Answer: Support the existing Spacebook.
76. Section III 11.12 – Who is NASA currently using for data center services.  


Answer: SunGard.
77. Section III 12.1.6 – Will a dedicated connection be required from the NASA network to the facility?   If a dedicated link is required will this be government provided or part of the WEST contract as IDIQ or non-IDIQ?  What is the required data rate for this connection? Do the system availability requirements include this connection? If so, what availability tier?

Answer: NASA will provide the termination equipment at the CIEF (Carrier Independent Exchange Facility); the vendor is responsible, as part of the base contract, for the bandwidth between the NASA network and the Vendor’s facility. Whether or not a dedicated link is required, and what data rate is required to meet the performance metrics in this contract, are implementation details purposely left to the contractor. 

Currently, NASA provides the switch and connection into the NASA CIEF, and the vendor pays for the fiber link and the termination equipment at their facility. As of January 2010, the vendor uses two alternate carriers for redundancy. 

For more information about NASA WAN services available through NISN, see http://nisn.nasa.gov/DOCUMENTS1/nsd.doc.

78. Section III 12.1.8.1 – Can these systems be replicated to the hosted facility, or will WAN connectivity be required for systems, hosted applications, etc. back to these systems? 

Answer: WAN Connectivity is generally required for these systems. However, in the case of NCAD, the WEST offeror may elect to use a local NCAD Domain Controller, in which case the WEST offeror is responsible for the cost.

79. Section III 12.3.1.3 – What is the definition and distinctions between shared hosted and virtual server environments? 

Answer: Shared hosted is typically an environment where multiple customers are given shared space on a physical server. Virtual server environment refers to a virtual machine (VM) environment. In a VM, each virtual server can run its own operating system, and unlike a shared hosted environment, each server can be independently rebooted. Regardless of these examples, as WEST is a performance-based contract, the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides offerors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use its particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies.

80. Section III 12.3.1.5.1 – What is the anticipated number of OS variants per year? Will variants be well defined and provided to the contractor in sufficient time to meet the 12.3.1.3 & 4 requirements.  What are the sizing requirements for the variants? 

Answer: The precise number of the variants is unknown because they are based on individual customer preferences and application requirements.  In the case of Windows Server (2003 or 2008), most will be Standard because of the cost factor.  The complete OS specification will be provided at the time the server environment service is ordered.  An example could be “Microsoft Windows Server 2003 Standard in 32-bit.”  The complete server/VM sizing requirements will be provided at the time the server environment is ordered.  An example could be “VM environment with 2 CPU cores and 3 GB RAM.”  It is reasonable to expect the proposer to offer some common graduated sizings based on industry experience and commercial hosting offerings.

81. Section III 12.3.3.1 – What is the anticipated number of DB instances required per year per variant? 

Answer: The precise number of DB instances required per year is unknown nor is the distribution of the various types/vendors.  It is reasonably anticipated based on historical distribution across the agency that most databases requested will be MySQL, followed by a small number of MS SQL and followed by a smaller number of Oracle.  It is reasonable to expect that the proposer will offer some common configurations based on industry experience and commercial hosting offerings.

82. Section III 12.6.1 – What are the CPU/system memory requirements for each of these bundles? 

Answer: As WEST is a performance-based contract, the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use its particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies.

83. Section III 12.6.1.8.3 – Can NASA please clarify the “under these requirements” for which specific sections? Also can you clarify “promotion of the content”? 

Answer: This question appears to reference 12.6.1.7.1, not 12.6.1.8.3. In section 12.6.1.7.1, “under these requirements” applies to the hosting infrastructure in Section 12. This requirement is there to make sure that content published by NASA customers using the web hosting portion of the contract can be easily imported (i.e. “promoted”) into the content management suite of tools, thus avoiding information silos.

84. Section III 20.4.1 – To clarify, does dynamic exclude all content that is cached in a proxy server or a content delivery network? Specifically is the bandwidth requirement 900 mbps to the datacenter(s) or is that the amount of traffic delivered to end users? 


Answer: Dynamic excludes all contented that is cached in a proxy server and a content delivery network.  The bandwidth requirement of 900 mbps is to both the datacenter(s) and the amount of traffic delivered to the end users.
85. Section III 20.4.5 – Is this covered under the IDIQ?
Answer: Vendors should be prepared to provide bandwidth at these levels for up to 48 hours as part of the base part of the contract. Additional bandwidth under this section would be IDIQ.
86. Section III 20.8 – Should the offeror include the price of the 3rd party services as part of the IDIQ? 

Answer: Third-party validation will be procured by NASA.
87. Section III 22 – What is the current search engine being used? FAST, Autonomy, Google Search Appliance?  Does NASA wish to continue with this solution either in the short or long term? 


Answers: NASA currently uses the Google Custom Search Engine, Baynote Observer and Verity in concert with the NASA Machine-Aided Indexing service and NASA Thesaurus for its enterprise search capability. As WEST is a performance-based contract, the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use its particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies.
88. Section 22.2.3 – What is the number of queries per hour (average and peak)? 

Answer: In 2009, users posted approximately 110 million queries, with an hourly peak of approximately 75,000.
89. Section III 23.2.1 – Can the contractor use the existing Remedy implementation or will they be expected to standup their own instance of Remedy. 

Answer:  The WEST vendor may use the NSSC system, but it is not required. The vendor is responsible for the cost of any improvements or expansions to the NSSC instance required for the WEST vendor to use it.

90. Does the agency require Biometric scanner at the server cage level?
Answer: As WEST is a performance based contract, most of the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use their particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies. As stated in Section 6 of the Performance Work Statement, the contractor is responsible for understanding and complying with all NASA and federal IT security policies and procedures. NASA does not specifically require biometric scanners at the server cage level.
91. Does the agency have FISMA requirement or SAS70 type II certified data center suffice?
Answer: As WEST is a performance based contract, most of the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use their particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies. As stated in Section 6 of the Performance Work Statement, the contractor is responsible for understanding and complying with all NASA and federal IT security policies and procedures and for documenting its security plan and obtaining NASA approval. The exact implementation, which could include a NIST-compliant C&A package or SAS70 certification, is left to the offeror.

92. The Network services are missing- need to know the IP transit and back-end connectivity requirement.

Answer: The performance requirements for network services are described in sections 12.5 and 20 of the Performance Work Statement. As WEST is a performance based contract, most of the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement, and after contract award, to use their particular expertise to continue to innovate along with changes in available technologies.

93. Data Center services are listed as a separate program; however, prices for Data Center Services, Storage, and Bandwidth are requested as part of the Proposal for WEST.  Will these Services and Prices be determined by who is awarded the Data Center Program?


Answer: Services for WEST will be procured under the WEST contract, except for hosting for internal data, which will be provided as a government-furnished service from the NASA Enterprise Data Center (NEDC) contract.
94. What is the status of NASA’s implementation of ITIL primary, secondary and tertiary processes?

Answer: The NASA OCIO is committed to the ITIL v3 framework.  NASA has developed a set of IT processes which are aligned with the ITIL v3 framework. What an organization considers primary, secondary, and tertiary processes is subjective.  NASA has developed an IT process set covering its interpretation (which is a relatively common view) of primary, secondary, and tertiary IT processes.  
 
As part of a Continual Service Improvement (and Lean Six Sigma) program, NASA anticipates modifications to/tuning of its IT processes to refine and optimize them for NASA’s IT environment on an on-going basis. Even with modification to/tuning of its IT processes, NASA will continue its alignment with the ITIL v3 framework. 
 
NASA expects its I3P suppliers to align with the ITIL framework so that regardless of an organization’s detailed IT process interpretations, NASA and its suppliers may still align to a common IT process framework (i.e., ITIL v3).


95. Should we assume unquestionably that Tier 0/1 services will be provided by NASA at the time of award. Because there are cost implication on the part of the offerror if these services have to be provided by the offeror, even for a time.

Answer: Yes the Tier 0/1 services will be provided by NASA at time of award.

96. Section II, Paragraph C.1 states that all configuration data is to be stored in NASA’s BMC Remedy system (CMDB), which presumably the NASA SOC would have ready access to.  If that is the case, please clarify as to why it is necessary for us to provide information to the SOC as specified in paragraph 6.2.

Answer: The SOC will not have access to the BMC Remedy CMDB managed by the NSSC.

97. Where are the Recovery Time and Recovery Point Objectives (RTOs/RPOs) defined?

Answer: These are left to the offeror to define in support of meeting the performance metrics defined in the Service Level Agreements.

98. We assume the scope for WEST from a public web site standpoint includes all NASA public web sites (Which appear to number in the thousands), services for whom would span across content management, collaboration, search, delivery and data center services. Is that a fair assumption?

Answer:  The immediate scope covers all the sites managed under the current contract, listed in "Domains Hosted in NASA Portal", posted in the Web Resources section of the WEST portion of the I3P Technical Library.

99. I reviewed information on the Q&A [http://i3p-acq.ksc.nasa.gov/FAQ/FAQ.cfm] page for this upcoming NASA contract vehicle and noticed PKI/PKE seems to be associated with this contract as NASA similar to the DoD has established their own PKI [http://nasaca.arc.nasa.gov/].  The DoD has established various phases of PKI/PKE implementation some of which now require all private web servers be PKEnabled to utilize digital certificates for client authentication and/or access control. Would you happen to know if NASA has indeed begun to mandate applications and networks be migrated from traditional UserID/Password type authentication to two-factor authentication using digital certificates?

Answer: NASA has implemented an authentication architecture to support PIV smartcard authentication.  By September 30, 2011, all NASA applications must integrate with one of NASA's agency authentication systems:

NASA’s Consolidated Active Directory (NCAD) is based on the Microsoft Active Directory infrastructure.  It supports both userid/password and PIV smartcard authentication.  The underlying authentication protocol is Kerberos.  NCAD supports NIST SP 800-63 Levels of Assurance 2 and 4.

NASA’s Access Launchpad is based on Sun Access Manager.  The NASA Enterprise Directory (NED), utilizing the SunOne Java Directory, provides identity and authorization data to support authentication and authorization decisions.  The Launchpad supports userid/password, RSA token, and PIV smartcard authentication.  It is also integrated with NCAD to provide a single sign-on experience for NASA employees.  The underlying authentication protocol is SAML v. 2.0.  The Launchpad supports remote IT access conforming to NIST SP 800-63 requirements for levels of assurance 1 – 4.

Deviations are allowed for applications that cannot integrate with NCAD or the Launchpad due to technology constraints. Regardless, as stated in the Performance Work Statement, the WEST vendor must comply with all NASA IT Security policies and procedures.

100. General - Does NASA encourages or discourages proposal response from Small Business Joint Ventures (JV)?

Answer:  The Government does not have a preference on the type of business arrangements that are made in order to meet the requirements of the solicitation.

101. Does NASA intend to make a single or multiple awards against this solicitation?

Answer:  This contract will be awarded as a single award contract.

102. The two personnel with Top Secret clearance that must be identified need to be key personnel (Program Manager) or could they be part of the corporate organization? (16(d) Page 82).

Answer:  As WEST is a performance-based contract, the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement.

103. Will the small business Joint Venture require a Top Secret clearance at proposal submission or will the clearance level of the managing partner or other partners be sufficient?

Answer:  As WEST is a performance-based contract, the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor. This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution that meets the requirement.

104. What is the minimum and maximum number of past performance to be submitted by the Prime or subcontractors?

Answer:  There is no minimum or maximum number of past performance evaluations required to be submitted.

105. What is the best format for past performance submission directly to NASA (email, fax, hard copy)?

Answer:  There is no preference of submission of past performance evaluations.

106. How much preference will the incumbent provider be given when considering the new awardees?

Answer:  No special preference will be given to the incumbent when evaluating all submitted proposals.
107. What are the estimated contract award and contract start dates?

Answer:  The Government will not release the independent government cost estimate for this procurement.  The anticipated contract start date is September 2010.

108. What is the estimated value of the Base contract.

Answer:  The Government will not release the independent government cost estimate for this procurement.

109. Who is the designated SSA?

Answer:  The designated SSA is the Deputy Associate Administrator for NASA Exploration Systems Mission Directorate.

110. Who will be the SEB chairman?

Answer:  The SEB chairman is Brian Dunbar, Information Technology Specialist.

111.  Per the solicitation ACAs are required within 3 months of contract award but contractors for NICS and NEDC may still be TBD at WEST contract award. Does this imply that the Government intents the award for all the I3P contracts to be simultaneous. Or should the offeror build in effort for this interim period as part of the Phase-in plan to minimize the Government's risk. 

Answer:  The I3P contracts will not be awarded simultaneously. Amendment #3 will clarify that if the other I3P contracts have not been awarded, the ACA’s will be enforced 3 months after the individual contracts have been awarded.

112. PP Volume instructions  ask for "a record of your' company's OSHA recordable injuries and illnesses for the past 3 years".  Does this mean OSHA form 300A's must be provided?  If so, will those be exclude from the page count.

Answer:  A summary statement should be included in the proposal which will count towards the page limitation; however, any additional reports submitted will not count towards the page limitations.

113. Past Performance Volume instructions asks for the written consent of proposed significant subcontractors to allow the Government to discuss the subcontractor's past performance evaluation with the Offer.  Will these letters count against the 20 page limitation for the Past Performance Volume.

Answer:  The letters will not count against the 20 page limitation for the Past Performance Volume.  

114. DRD WEST-10, OCI Plan calls for initial submission 30 days after release of the final RFP.  Should it say "See Clause 41" since OCI Plan is either due with proposal or 30 days after contract award per that Clause?

Answer:  If the Offeror is aware of an organizational conflict of interest (OCI) that could impact contract performance, an OCI Plan must be submitted when the proposals are due and approved prior to contract award.  However, if there is no anticipated issue then the OCI plan would be submitted 30 days after contract award.  Amendment 3 will clarify the proposal content and page limitations listed on page 76.
115. Should the DRD CF-14 initial submission of "30 days after contract award" be "30 days after contract start"?

Answer:  The initial submission of the Repetitive Problem Document is due 30 days after contract award.

116. Time period for some RTO's is outside the contract period (e.g., RTO #1 POP of July 1, 2010 to December 31, 2010) necessitating development of additional labor rates which will not be binding since they will not relate to proposed rates for the contract.

Answer:  The RTOs are to be used as examples of possible task orders awarded under this contract.  Proposed labor categories and rates should be utilized when establishing the proposal.

117. How many rounds of question submissions does the Government intend for this solicitation?

Answer:  It is unclear on how many “rounds” will be needed however the Government will answer all questions submitted by January 4, 2010 and attempt to answer all other questions submitted after that date.

118. Can you help me with the type of Small Business status requirement needed to Prime WEST. I believe you do NOT have to be an 8A type small business, but what type of Small Business status is needed?

Answer:  In accordance with the NAICS code, as will be corrected in Amendment #3, a small business is any business under the $25M size standard.  Size standards represent the largest size that a business (including its subsidiaries and affiliates) may be to remain classified as a small business concern.  

119. Since this is the first time we are dealing with your organization, are there any registration formalities to be completed before submission?

Answer:  In accordance with FAR 52.212-1 of the RFQ and FAR 4.11, prospective vendors must be registered in CCR prior to the award of a contract.  In addition, in accordance with FAR 52.212-1 of the RFQ and FAR 52.204-7, to register in CCR, a firm must have a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number. The DUNS Number is assigned by Dun & Bradstreet, Inc. (D&B) to identify unique business entities.

120. Would the Government consider a due date extension for solicitation NNH09274133R, the Web Enterprise Services and Technology (WEST) procurement?

Answer:   The Government has reviewed this request and has determined that a 60-day response time is sufficient and therefore the proposal due date will not be extended.  Proposals are due on February 5, 2010 at 1:00pm.

121. Question: Will the Government consider removing or significantly lowering the 30% stipulation to allow offerors to submit more, relevant past performance references? 

Answer:  At this time, the Government will not change the percentages listed for past performance evaluations; however Amendment #3 inserts specific language if an Offeror cannot meet this requirement.  
122. The SF1449 Solicitation issued under FAR Part 12 indicates that the procurement is for commercially available services and products and the check box of 27a further ties it to all the provisions of 52.212.  If a contractor or a Contractor’s subcontractors services do not qualify as commercial services under the commercial item definition in FAR 2.101 will that Contractors proposal be accepted and evaluated?  None of the other solicitation documents with requirements and evaluation criteria expressly prohibit the Government from accepting a noncommercial solution.  So, can you please clarify if non-commercial services solutions are acceptable.
Answer:  Since this procurement is being procured under FAR Part 12, all offerors must propose those services listed under the commercial definition. FAR 12.203 does however allow for the use of policies and procedures for solicitation, evaluation, and award as prescribed in Part 15. 
WEST Final RFP Questions and Responses – Posted January 27, 2010
123. Section III 12.1.4 – What is the expected number of sites per year?

Answer: The approximate number of sites per year is 50.
124. Does ETouch still qualify for the targeted set-aside of a Small Business? 

Answer: As of January 27, 2010, the Central Contractor Registry reflects that ETouch is a small business under NAICS Code 541519. 

125. Reference RFQ Part IV, Provision 19, Past Performance Volume, Subparagraph (a), 
Information From the Offeror.  Offerors and any proposed significant subcontractor(s) are required to furnish past performance information for all most recent contracts or subcontracts (recent and ongoing) for similar efforts over 30% of the proposed total contract value for the prime contractor and at least 10% of the proposed contract value  for all major subcontractors which the companies have had within the last 3 years.  


(a) With respect to the “30%” and “10%” proposed total contract value, is this inclusive or exclusive of the indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity (IDIQ) requirements and if inclusive, what IDIQ value should be factored in given the RFQ Part I, Provision 28 minimum and maximum values of $2M and $38.5M, respectively?

Answer:  Based on the question received and in order to simplify the submission of past performance information, the Government is revising the levels for submission of past performance information as follows, which will be included in Amendment #4:

Offerors and any proposed significant subcontractor(s) (defined as any subcontract that is likely to exceed $5,000,000 over a 5-year period of performance) shall furnish the following information for all of your most recent contracts or subcontracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts of at least $25 million for the prime contractor and at least $10 million for all significant subcontractors which the companies has had within the last 3 years.   If an Offeror and/or any proposed significant subcontractor do not have previous experience at these dollar levels, please submit the most relevant past performance information.  Indicate which contracts/subcontracts are most related (i.e. similar in size, content, and/or complexity) and how they are related to the proposed effort, as well as which contracts/subcontracts were performed by the division of your company (if applicable) that will perform the proposed contract/subcontract.  
126. Would your organization be open to doing a part of the implementation and development 
work offshore, in order to bring your costs down? So basically we would have a few US based onsite staff as per your requirements but bulk of the development will be done offshore.

Answer: At this time, NASA is not in a position to make a determination on the acceptance of the above circumstance since a proposal has not been received.  As WEST is a performance based contract, most of the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor.  This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution for meeting the requirement.  As stated in the RFQ, “top secret” work will be performed under this contract therefore the Offeror must comply with The Security Agreement (DD Form 441) as referenced in Clause 52.204-2 - Security Requirements, and DD Form 254 Contract Security Classification Specification.  In addition, the Offeror shall comply with all U.S. export control laws and regulations including the International Traffic in Arms Regulations as identified in Clause 1852.225-70 -Export Licenses.

127. The IDIQ pricing does not allow the flexibility of including more pricing than just one 
model.  Can the offeror insert another line into the IDIQ and provide pricing levels under items like this?  We feel it is in the government’s best interest financially to allow multiple IDIQ levels for Servers (X86/Solaris), Software bundles (pricing the levels/editions separately), Network Hardware (Ethernet/fiber). 

Answer:  The Government has reviewed this request and has determined that offerors are to submit price proposals in accordance with the instructions listed in Part IV of the Solicitation.

128. The IDIQ portion asks for pricing per instance of database software; however, the OEMs 
price this by the core or socket of the box.  Can we change the pricing to correlate with the OEM’s standard pricing?

Answer:  As WEST is a performance based contract, most of the implementation details are purposely left to the contractor.  This provides vendors the maximum flexibility to propose the best solution for meeting the requirements. Offerors are expected to submit pricing in accordance with the instructions listed in Part IV of the Solicitation.
129. Under the IDIQ pricing 12.4.2, 12.4.3, 12.4.4 “Housing Services” should this be priced 

for providing space for GFE or should the offeror price providing the server, storage system, and networking hardware?

Answer:  These requirements are under the IDIQ portion of the contract and are not defined at this time; however, they will be clearly defined at the task ordering level.  Both scenarios should be considered when submitted the Offeror’s price proposal.

130. The baseline FFP portion of the pricing doesn’t include many of the services that are 
being provided today by the incumbent and outlined in the PWS, will these services be requested via an RTO near contract award?

Answer:  The WEST contract is not a full and direct follow on to the OneNASA Web Portal Contract, though it contains many of the same services. Some services under the current contract will not be included in WEST, such as some security work involving eAuthentication. The Performance Work Statement includes all work to be done under the WEST contract and makes clear which requirements should be priced in the base and which should be priced as IDIQ components.

131. The Service Level Agreement defines the standard for NASA.gov pages to load as no 
more than 7.5 seconds and cites the measurement method and data sources to be webmetrics.com.  However Question and Answer number 27 states there is no current agreement with webmetrics.com.   Please clarify whether webmetrics.com (or another 3rd party determined by NASA outside of the WEST procurement) will perform this independent review of the WEST contractor, and whether such a third party review function of page load time is a requirement for offerors under the WEST procurement?  

Answer:  A third-party such as webmetrics.com or something similar will validate the performance measures outlined in the SLA (Attachment E). The service will be procured by NASA.
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